
 
NOTICE 

 
OF 

 
MEETING 

 
MAIDENHEAD TOWN FORUM 

 
will meet on 

 
MONDAY, 5TH SEPTEMBER, 2022 

 
At 6.30 pm 

 
In the 

 
COUNCIL CHAMBER - TOWN HALL, MAIDENHEAD AND ON RBWM YOUTUBE  

 
 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE MAIDENHEAD TOWN FORUM 
 
COUNCILLORS DAVID COPPINGER (CHAIRMAN), HELEN TAYLOR (VICE-
CHAIRMAN), GURPREET BHANGRA, ROSS MCWILLIAMS, CLIVE BASKERVILLE, 
CHRIS TARGOWSKI, JOHN BALDWIN, GEOFF HILL, GREG JONES, GERRY CLARK 
AND GURCH SINGH  

 
 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 
 
COUNCILLORS MAUREEN HUNT, CATHERINE DEL CAMPO, NEIL KNOWLES, 
STUART CARROLL, DONNA STIMSON, PHIL HASELER, JOSHUA REYNOLDS, 
SIMON BOND, ANDREW JOHNSON, JON DAVEY AND DAVID CANNON 

 
 

Karen Shepherd – Head of Governance - Issued: 25th August 2022 
 
Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Mark Beeley 01628 796345 / 
mark.beeley@rbwm.gov.uk 

 
 

Recording of Meetings – In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the Part I (public) section of the virtual 
meeting will be streamed live and recorded via Zoom. By participating in the meeting by audio and/or video, you are 
giving consent to being recorded and acknowledge that the recording will be in the public domain. If you have any 

questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead/videos
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO 
  

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
  

- 
 

 
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
To receive any declarations of interest. 
  

3 - 4 
 

 
3.   MINUTES 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 11th July 2022. 
  

5 - 12 
 

 
4.   UPDATE ON MAIDENHEAD UNITED FOOTBALL CLUB 

 
To receive an update from Jon Adams on the move away from York Road. 
  

Verbal 
Report 

 
 
5.   WILD MAIDENHEAD - BECOMING A PESTICIDE-FREE TOWN 

 
To consider and discuss the proposals made by Wild Maidenhead. 
  

13 - 14 
 

 
6.   COST OF LIVING CRISIS - IMPACTS IN THE BOROUGH 

 
To hear from Councillor Baldwin and Jeff Pick (Thames Valley Police). 
  

15 - 16 
 

 
7.   MAIDENHEAD TOWN MANAGER UPDATE 

 
To receive an update from Robyn Bunyan. 
  

17 - 20 
 

 
8.   ITEM SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE FORUMS 

 
The Forum is invited to make suggestions for future meetings. 
  

- 
 

 
9.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
All future meetings to be held on the following dates (at 6.30pm): 
  

         Thursday 10th November 2022 
         Thursday 12th January 2023 
         Thursday 16th March 2023 

  

- 
 

 
 



Revised September 2021 

 

 

MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS  
 

Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration 
of interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI) or Other Registerable Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest 
in their Register of Interests they are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter 
being discussed.   
 
Any Member with concerns about the nature of their interest should consult the Monitoring Officer in 
advance of the meeting.  
 
Non-participation in case of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your DPIs (summary below, further 
details set out in Table 1 of the Members’ Code of Conduct) you must disclose the interest, not 
participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you 
have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ (as agreed in advance by the Monitoring 
Officer), you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest. 
Dispensation may be granted by the Monitoring Officer in limited circumstances, to enable you to 
participate and vote on a matter in which you have a DPI. 

Where you have a DPI on a matter to be considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet 
Member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest 
and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to 
deal with it. 
 
DPIs (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) made to the 
councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out his/her 
duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election expenses 

• Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has 
not been fully discharged. 

• Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the council. 

• Any licence to occupy land in the area of the council for a month or longer. 

• Any tenancy where the landlord is the council, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant person 
has a beneficial interest in the securities of. 

• Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a place of business or land in the area of the council, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class 
belonging to the relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other Registerable Interests 
(summary below and as set out in Table 2 of the Members Code of Conduct), you must disclose the 
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak 
at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive 
interest’ (as agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer), you do not have to disclose the nature of 
the interest. 

3

Agenda Item 2



Revised September 2021 

 

Other Registerable Interests (relating to the Member or their partner): 

 

You have an interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect: 

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority 

b) any body 

(i) exercising functions of a public nature 

(ii)  directed to charitable purposes or 

 

one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political 

party or trade union) 

 

Disclosure of Non- Registerable Interests 
 
Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being (and 
is not a DPI) or a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the 
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak 
at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ 
(agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer) you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or 
c. a body included in those you need to disclose under DPIs as set out in Table 1 of the 

Members’ code of Conduct 

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after 
disclosing your interest the following test should be applied. 

Where a matter affects your financial interest or well-being: 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would 
affect your view of the wider public interest 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive 
interest’ (agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer, you do not have to disclose the nature of the 
interest. 
 
 
Other declarations 
 
Members may wish to declare at the beginning of the meeting any other information they feel should 
be in the public domain in relation to an item on the agenda; such Member statements will be included 
in the minutes for transparency. 
 

 
 

4



MAIDENHEAD TOWN FORUM 
 

MONDAY, 11 JULY 2022 
 
PRESENT: Councillors David Coppinger (Chairman), Helen Taylor (Vice-Chairman), 
Gurpreet Bhangra, Ross McWilliams, Clive Baskerville, Chris Targowski, Geoff Hill, 
Greg Jones, Gerry Clark and Gurch Singh 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Simon Bond, Councillor Donna Stimson and Councillor 
Phil Haseler 
 
Officers: Oran Norris-Browne, Andrew Durrant, Emmanuel Ogedengbe and Robyn 
Bunyan 
 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
MINUTES  
 
AGREED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 May 2022 be a 
true and accurate record. 
 
UPDATE ON REGENERATION AROUND MAIDENHEAD  
 
Emmanuel Ogedengbe, Head of Development with RBWM Property Company, who was 
standing in for Ian Brazier-Dubber, provided the forum with an update on the regeneration 
works that were occurring within Maidenhead.  
  
The public square at York Road was opened by the former Prime Minister Theresa May back 
in May 2022. Phase 1 had been shortlisted recently at the British Homes Awards 2022. This 
was a great testimony to the design and to what the Council was trying to achieve. The site 
was previously a car park, which had now been transformed into a mixed-use scheme of 
residential and commercial. This would continue to inspire confidence and vibrancy in the local 
community.  
  
Emmanuel Ogedengbe added that conversations were currently ongoing with Shanly in 
relation to York Road Phase 2 in resolving the access constraint and there was hope that the 
obstacles could be overcome, and issues could be ironed out. Regarding York Road Phase 3, 
RBWM Property Company Limited was continuing to liaise with Maidenhead Heritage Centre 
who had now appointed a Property Adviser in relation to property matters and their potential 
relocation to the Sports Able Pavilion in Braywick Park. Talks were ongoing on this and were 
looking positive.  
  
In terms of St Clouds Way, planning permission was formally issued recently with the Section 
106 agreement having been signed. The first phase of the process would be the demolition of 
the former Magnet Leisure Centre. The Council were working very closely with Countryside 
Partnerships to get to a point where this could start in a timely manner. Hoarding will soon be 
erected around the site. Pre-commencement planning conditions were being dealt with by the 
Local Planning Authority and the Construction Environmental Management Plan was currently 

5

Agenda Item 3



being progressed in liaison with the LPA and Highways Department with a meaningful start on 
site anticipated by late August/September 2022.  
  
Emmanuel Ogedengbe said that with Maidenhead Golf Course, SDP consultation was 
currently ongoing. There was also a current ongoing legal challenge against the Borough 
Local Plan, which was still awaiting decision from the High Court.  
  
Councillor Greg Jones asked what was happening with the water feature within York Road. 
Emmanuel Ogedengbe replied by saying that he was not currently aware but was happy to 
take this offline and let Councillor Greg Jones know. He knew that Countryside Partnerships 
were looking to resolve the issue but would follow up on the progress offline.  
  
ACTION: Emmanuel Ogedengbe to follow up with Countryside Partnerships and inform 
Councillor Greg Jones on the issues with the water fountain located at York Road.  
  
Councillor Stimson asked if the closure of the public car parking at the former Magnet Leisure 
Centre site could be done as late as possible in the run up to demolition, in order to aid 
residents in parking close by the town centre. Emmanuel Ogedengbe said that it was 
imperative that information about the closure of the public car park from 1 July 2022 had to be 
released into the public domain to convey the anticipation of site preparations whilst there was 
a transitional period for the provision of temporary car parking for the Wilderness Medical 
Centre (i.e., the Surgeries, Pharmacy and Dental Practices) at the former Ten Pin Bowling 
site.  
  
Councillor Bond asked about connectivity between different parts of the town centre. He 
directed attention towards a very narrow alley way between Wilkos and the bank, which 
connected the north of the town centre to the centre of the high street. He asked if there were 
any plans to better connect the north to the centre of the town centre.  
  
(Councillor Hill joined the meeting) 
  
Andrew Durrant, Executive Director of Place Services, said that works were ongoing in the 
town centre with the walking and cycling missing links, which was an initiative to improve 
connectivity in and around the town centre. Robyn Bunyan, Maidenhead Town Manager, said 
that it had always been a very busy pathway to access the centre of the high street from the 
north and admitted that it was very narrow. She noted that more work could perhaps be done 
to inform residents of other ways to connect with the centre of town. Emmanuel Ogedengbe 
added that it could be a planning issue, and one that the planning team would have to be 
consulted on. 
  
The Chairman said that he would discuss this with Robyn Bunyan at their next offline meeting 
to see what alternatives they could possibly pursue for this issue.  
  
Councillor Singh asked about the exemplar scheme on York Road and asked how many units 
had so far been sold, as he believed it to be slow progress so far.  
  
Emmanuel Ogedengbe said that sales were progressing, admittedly a little slow of late but at 
this stage it was not impacting on the delivery of future phases of the Joint Venture projects 
with Countryside Partnerships. It was hoped that the housing market will have improved by the 
time St Clouds Way units were completed. 
  
Emmanuel Ogedengbe then said that York Road was entered into the British Homes Awards’ 
‘Mixed Used Development’ category and was viewed as exemplar because of the benefit and 
creative solution to the transformation of the former car park use that it brought to the 
community. People could take more pride in it now compared to when it was merely just a car 
park. The panel of judges who shortlisted it, did so for this reason.  
  

6



Emmanuel Ogedengbe said in response to Councillor Singh’s question on whether 
discussions had taken place with Shanly Homes over issues at York Road Phase 1, that there 
had been discussions and whilst there was an impact on progress, this was not monumental. 
Phase 3 could potentially be delivered before Phase 2 and he said that the planning 
department would not necessarily be needed, provided there were no design changes. 
  
Councillor Singh then asked if any offer had been made to Shanly Homes over a joined-up 
scheme or a land swap. Emmanuel Ogedengbe said that he could not go into specific details, 
although there had been active engagement within the company.  
  
Councillor Singh then asked about the parking at St Clouds Way and raised concern about the 
lack of an agreement with the medical centre that served 30,000 residents.  
  
Emmanuel Ogedengbe said that they had been in discussions with the surgery all along and 
that 40 temporary car parking spaces had been offered and agreed until the end of 2023 on 
the former Ten Pin Bowling site and that any permanent car parking requirements could be 
reviewed in the future. The Wilderness Medical Centre were to repurpose the 20 leased car 
parking area close to the Surgeries for patients dedicated car parking area. 
  
Councillor McWilliams asked what the potential outcomes could be for the Judicial Review 
process in relation to Maidenhead Golf Course and the Borough Local Plan.  
  
Emmanuel Ogedengbe said that he of course could not speculate, however admitted that 
there was currently a delay from the High Court in deciding on whether the 
administrative/technical error with the claim lodged could be sustained and allowed to 
progress. If the High Court ruled against the Borough Local Plan, then this would be up to the 
claimant and their legal advisors on what they would do next, and therefore he could not 
speculate any further.  
  
The Chairman thanked Emmanuel Ogedengbe for his update. 
  
Andrew Durrant then provided the forum with a presentation on Kidwells Park and RBWM 
tennis facilities, in addition to the regeneration of Maidenhead item.  
  
Andrew Durrant said that the borough was at the early stages of their revised Sports & Leisure 
Strategy, which had a primary objective of “more residents, more active, more often and more 
healthy”. This would be underpinned by three priorities that would be focussed upon.  
  
These were: 

1.     Promote and champion existing clubs to help grow membership. 
2.     Maximise usage and accessibility of existing facilities to enable clubs to grow. 
3.     Identify gaps in leisure/sports facility provision and explore opportunities to address. 

Andrew Durrant said that work was currently ongoing on built facilities and playing pitches with 
an aim to integrate usage, use demand and gap analysis and steer strategic investment in 
future facilities. Leisure re-procurement had been spoken about at recent cabinet meetings 
and anew leisure operator would be confirmed and announced during the early part of 2023 
as the successful bidder. The attendance at leisure facilities was being seen to return to pre-
pandemic levels and in some cases, the current participation levels in leisure were actually 
exceeding pre-pandemic levels. The Braywick leisure centre was now ahead of the former 
Magnet leisure centre site in terms of attendance.  
  
Andrew Durrant said that with the regeneration of Maidenhead, this would ultimately attract 
more people to the town and in doing so, it would bring with it an increase in demand for parks 
such as Kidwells Park.  
  
Andrew Durrant said that the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA) had a funding package that was 
available across the country, delivered by Sprot England. They were contacted a while back 
enquiring on whether there were opportunities within the borough for this funding, which there 

7



were. A good share of this funding was obtained. Andrew Durrant then outlined some of the 
LTA’s aims and features. It suggested improvements for the borough’s tennis courts.  
  
Andrew Durrant said that the 3 tennis park locations in Maidenhead were Kidwells, 
Desborough and Oaken Grove and he outlined the estimated demand figures for each court. 
The funding application went into the LTA in the last few weeks prior to this meeting, to which 
the borough heard back almost instantly that they were successful.  
  
Andrew Durrant stressed that this was still subject to final signed agreements between the 
LTA and RBWM. The funding would be sued to enhance the courts and improve their quality. 
It would also allow for people to book the courts and participate in an easy way.  
  
Andrew Durrant then gave a quick overview of the key aspects of Kidwells Park. This included 
who managed it and what facilities it included. Facilities included a skate park, a children’s 
play area, playing courts, memorial gardens, a water feature and a small building that in the 
past had been used as a café unit.  
  
In terms of the café unit, a condition survey had been undertaken in 2021. It had previously 
received some interest from potential operators. The borough were currently considering an 
Expression of Interest to the market. A possible alignment with the new leisure contract was 
also being explored.  
  
Andrew Durrant then provided the forum with a summary and outlined that there was a 
planned attacking approach to upgrade the tennis courts and to try and reopen the Kidwells 
Park café unit. He added that further communications would be provided to both Ward 
Councillors and residents once plans were definitive and before planned works were to take 
place.  
  
Councillor Singh expressed his mixed feelings on this. He acknowledged the securing of the 
funding from the LTA which he was pleased for, however he said that there was currently a 
cost-of-living crisis and to begin charging residents to play tennis was concerning. He asked 
why the borough was now going to begin charging residents to play tennis, whereas currently 
they could play for free.  
  
Councillor McWilliams who was Cabinet Member for Digital Connectivity, Housing 
Opportunity, & Sport & Leisure, said that the funding that had been secured was very positive 
news to improve the facilities and reopen the café unit. He acknowledged the hard work and 
success that Leisure Focus had brought to the borough and that their improved facilities were 
enhancing the community. He said that it would be good for a brief explanation on how the 
new system would work compared to the old system, which would be useful for residents to 
know.  
  
Andrew Durrant followed up on this by saying that people would book online, receive the code 
and then this would give them access to the court. He said that accessibility was a key push, 
and this new system was very inclusive to whole range of different cohorts, throughout the 
year and the summer period. He added that over the next few years, he was keen to see 
better consistency over how courts are rented throughout the borough, so that it was 
consistent.  
  
Councillor Singh then said that he was going to leave the meeting as he felt that his question 
was not being answered. The Chairman replied and stated clearly that he needed to wait until 
Andrew Durrant had finished before he could reply.  
  
(Councillor Singh left the meeting) 
  
Andrew Durrant said that if all facilities were free to use, then a hole would be left to fill if and 
when facilities needed to be repaired and maintained in the long term.  
  

8



Councillor Hill said that in Councillor Singh’s defence he did have a point that currently there 
were many people who were struggling financially, due to the cost-of-living crisis. He said that 
the borough had a duty of care to provide people with a way to stay fit and healthy if they 
could not afford to pay and play. He agreed that payments had to be obtained in order to 
maintain the facilities, however he implored for some provision for people who were unable to 
afford to do this.  
Robyn Bunyan said that there were a range of people throughout Maidenhead, which was 
great. She said that a communication piece potentially existed to spread the awareness of it 
and reach the people who would really benefit from it. 
  
Councillor Taylor said that she possessed some experience on this during her time working for 
Slough Borough Council. She said that bookings for the tennis courts there were done using 
block out features. The times would be blocked out for tennis lessons or ‘have a go’ sessions 
for example and other times it would be open for paying members. She said that it was 
important to strike a balance between both. She asked if it was possible to explore having a 
separate advantage card that could be used in order to not exclude.  
  
Andrew Durrant thanked both Councillor Hill and Councillor Taylor for their comments and 
said that it was important to not exclude anybody and that this was certainly something that 
they could try and look at in conjunction with the leisure contract going forward.  
  
ACTION: Andrew Durrant to discuss with Leisure Focus on ways to not exclude people 
from leisure during cost-of-living crisis. 
  
Councillor McWilliams also thanked both Councillor Hill and Councillor Taylor for their 
comments and added that Leisure Focus did appear to have flexibility within their range of 
offerings, so welcomed discussions with them regarding the subject matter.  
  
The Chairman thanked Andrew Durrant for his presentation and his time in addressing the 
forum. 
  
The Chairman then said to Oran Norris-Browne, Democratic Services Officer, that he was 
happy for Councillor Singh to re-join the meeting. Oran Norris-Browne advised that Councillor 
Singh had informed him that he would be leaving halfway through the meeting and was 
therefore unavailable.  
  
 
MAIDENHEAD TOWN MANAGER UPDATE  
 
The forum considered a written report by Robyn Bunyan, Maidenhead Town Manager. 
  
Robyn Bunyan said that the good news was continuing in Maidenhead. ‘A Hoppy Place’ had 
recently opened next to the town hall, which gave a breath of fresh air into that area of the 
town. Wenzels had also now opened, along with Grilled Grub and Storia which had opened on 
the old Broadwick site. Robyn Bunyan said that a nice atmosphere had developed within the 
high street and that company employees had been seen more regularly attending sites within 
the town centre to purchase goods.  
  
Robyn Bunyan said that the busiest day in May 2022 was Saturday 14 May with 26,335 
visitors coming to the town centre. Visitor numbers on weekends were seen to be increasing 
and numbers were now back at pre-pandemic levels. Weekdays were also increasing. She 
acknowledged that there was more work to do, however the town centre was now a nice place 
to visit. Numerous other businesses were also coming to the town centre in the coming 
months. Premises licenses had also been applied for recently, suggesting further businesses 
coming to the town. 
  

9



Robyn Bunyan said that in May 2022, social media engagement was very high. Events such 
as the craft market and the Jubilee shop window competition saw large amounts of 
engagement. The weekly produce market was being seen to also grow. 
  
Robyn Bunyan said that June 2022 highlights included the Jubilee Craft in the Nicholsons 
centre, the farmers market, the world refill day, Father’s Day craft and make music day to 
name a few from the report. The baton relay had also taken place, which saw people attend 
and celebrate the event, which was well received within the community. There was also a lot 
of up-and-coming events that were coming to the town centre over the coming months.  
  
Councillor Taylor thanked Robyn Bunyan for the achievements that she spoke of and asked if 
an increase in footfall in the town centre had been down to these events.  
  
Robyn Bunyan replied by saying that more work had to be done to pinpoint footfall. She said 
that Thursday was a good day to use as a marker for footfall and it had been seen to increase 
on that day.  
  
Councillor Bhangra asked how businesses and persons of interest were aware of Maidenhead 
and what things were out there to attract them to Maidenhead over other locations.  
  
Robyn Bunyan admitted that more needed to be done, but things were happening. The Make 
Maidenhead social media platform was growing and was well engaged with. The My Royal 
Borough platform also existed, but more work needed to be done to shout about the good 
news that was out there about Maidenhead.  
  
Councillor McWilliams credited Robyn Bunyan’s enthusiasm and said that Maidenhead had 
improved so much in recent years.  He asked how important it was for Maidenhead to have a 
mixed demographic.  
  
Robyn Bunyan said that it was vital and that there was a huge mixed demographic of people 
that visited the waterside area of Maidenhead. The plan moving froward was to look at the 
different people that existed within the town and how they could best be catered too.  
  
Councillor Taylor said that it was important to keep areas on the periphery of the town centre 
looking vibrant and fresh, ready for when the regeneration of the Nicholsons centre occur, to 
not deter visitors from attending the town centre. She also asked what hashtags Councillors 
and others should use when visiting the town, to provide the best exposure for the town 
centre.  
  
Robyn Bunyan replied by saying that Make Maidenhead was on Twitter, Facebook, and 
Instagram via the @MakeMaidenhead account name. She implored for Councillors when 
visiting the town to tag the account and use the #MakeMaidenhead.  
  
Councillor Hill admitted that the town had a very vibrant part to it near the waterside, whereas 
the other part was maybe not so vibrant. The challenge was to get this vibrancy to exist across 
the whole town centre, and not just one singular location.  
  
Robyn Bunyan agreed with this and said that the high street currently was more of a 
passageway between the 2 vibrant sides of the town. The hard work needed to continue, and 
things needed to be in place ready for when the Nicholsons centre was demolished.  
  
The Chairman thanked Robyn Bunyan for her report and her attendance. Robyn Bunyan then 
offered Councillors the chance to have a walk around the town with her at their leisure to see 
the new sites that the town had to offer. 
  
 
 
 

10



ITEM SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE FORUMS  
 
Councillor Hill suggested an update on when the Nicholsons centre would be redeveloped and 
said that he and residents wished to be updated on a timeframe.  
  
Any further suggestions could be made offline, with the addition of any suggestions made by 
residents also.  
 
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The forum noted the dates of future meetings. 
  
The Chairman ended the meeting by explaining why he had to have Councillor Singh removed 
from the meeting. This being said, Councillor Singh had left the meeting on his own accord 
and was not removed. The Chairman apologised for this but said that all members were 
required to be respectful to each other and to officers. 
 
 
The meeting, which began at 6.32 pm, finished at 8.10 pm 
 

CHAIRMAN………………………………. 
 

DATE……………………………….......... 
 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Wild Maidenhead submission to Town Forum 5 September 2022  

Becoming a pesticide-free town  

1.1 This document sets out the case for going pesticide-free so that an informed decision can be 

taken by the council. This is in line with the council’s commitment to environmental 

improvement and improving public health, as set out in the RBWM Corporate Plan 2021-

2026 and the Environment and Climate Strategy 2020-2025. 
1.2 Pesticides (herbicides, insecticides and fungicides) are used in our borough to control a 

range of perceived problems including weeds and vermin. They are used in schools, parks, 

playgrounds, allotments and on our streets. These are all areas used daily by our residents. 

1.3 Pesticide use can have serious human health impacts, harm biodiversity and contaminate 

water supplies. There is growing evidence that glyphosate, the most commonly used 

weedkiller, is a higher health risk than previously assumed, with growing understanding of 

the damages caused by other chemical weed killers and pesticides to health and the 

environment.  Childhood health problems and diseases including childhood leukemia, 

allergies, and endocrine and immune system disruption have been linked to increases in 

pesticide use.1 In April 2015, the International Agency for Research on Cancer, part of the 

World Health Organization, concluded that glyphosate is “probably carcinogenic to 

humans”.2   

1.4 Pesticide use has a negative effect on urban wildlife and has been identified as a 

contributory factor in the decline of hedgehogs.  

1.5 Pesticides sprayed onto the hard surfaces rapidly run off into drains and sewers and can find 

their way into water supplies, incurring the additional cost of removing pesticides from our 

water supplies. 

1.6 Ending the use of pesticides in urban areas is becoming common. In France the use of all 

non-agricultural pesticides has been banned in public green spaces since January 2017. Large 

cities like Copenhagen, Paris, Rotterdam, Seattle and Tokyo all restrict or ban pesticide use 

in public spaces. Many local authorities have already gone pesticide-free e.g., Dartford, 

Lewes, Hammersmith & Fulham, Glastonbury, Trowbridge with a total of 46 town or 

boroughs having pesticides and/or glyphosate bans or phase-out commitments around the 

UK e.g., Chichester, Folkestone and Hythe.3 

1.7 We request that RBWM consider going pesticide-free for almost all uses, but to retain very 

limited use of an injectable systemic pesticide for Japanese Knotweed, a highly invasive plant 

which the authority is bound to control effectively by law on any sites where it occurs.  

1.8 The pesticide-free approach is broadly cost-neutral if a combination of alternatives is 

adopted. We recommend that an audit of current Council spending on pesticides, including 

 
1 See PAN Asia Pacific study: Poisoning our Future – Children and Pesticides study 

http://www.panap.net/sites/default/files/Poisoning-Our-Future-Children-and-Pesticides.pdf 
2 See IARC Monograph on Glyphosate https://www.iarc.who.int/featured-news/media-centre-iarc-news-
glyphosate/  
3 See PAN Pesticides and/or glyphosate bans or phase-out commitments around the UK https://www.pan-
uk.org/pesticide-free-towns-success-stories/  

13

Agenda Item 5

http://www.panap.net/sites/default/files/poisoning-our-future-children-and-pesticides.pdf
https://www.iarc.who.int/featured-news/media-centre-iarc-news-glyphosate/
https://www.iarc.who.int/featured-news/media-centre-iarc-news-glyphosate/
https://www.pan-uk.org/pesticide-free-towns-success-stories/
https://www.pan-uk.org/pesticide-free-towns-success-stories/


herbicides, fungicides and insecticides is undertaken. We further recommend that contact is 

made with councils that have recently converted to pesticide free in order to assess their 

experiences and knowledge of costs.  

1.9 There is evidence to suggest that the negative public health impacts of using pesticides has a 

disproportionate effect on some groups within our population (older people, children) and 

therefore going pesticide-free has positive implications for equalities in the borough. 

1.10 There are positive sustainability implications arising from the report: improved public health 

and happiness; a reduction in environmental harm to wildlife; and an improvement in run-

off pollution, reducing the energy-intensive need to strip pesticides out of water.  

1.11 In conclusion, the Council has a duty to safeguard the well-being of the borough’s residents, 

as well as to its own staff.  So, it needs to take due regard of changes in risk and consider a 

precautionary approach wherever possible. We urge the Town Forum to make 

recommendations to Cabinet that Maidenhead becomes a pesticide free town. 

 

Written on behalf of Wild Maidenhead      August 2022 

Angela Alexander, FRPharmS, MBE 
Professor Emerita, University of Reading 
Secretary to Wild Maidenhead 

14



CRIME STATS FOR MAIDENHEAD FOR THE LAST 31 DAYS – 23 08 2022 
 
BURGLARY DWELLINGS: 
WARNING – Police record garage breaks of integrated garages to a house and 
shed breaks as a ‘burglary dwelling’.  These have been removed from the 
figures as have – Burglaries involving domestic cases, parties where items go 
missing, shared accommodation where items go missing from shared rooms, 
landlord and tenant – and cases where it is believed the aggrieved is suffering 
from mental impairment. 
The computer shows 18 Domestic burglaries recorded – but only 8 were actual 
burglaries / attempted burglaries  
 
25/7 – 27/7  Ray Mead road.  Attempted burglary.  Damage found to rear window.  
No entry gained. 
28/7  Cedars Road.  Entry via rear door untidy search upstairs – iPhone and cash 
stolen. 
1/8  Smithfield Road.  Transom window left open for ventilation.  Offender reached in 
and opened a large window and climbed inside.  Nintendo Switch, Laptops X 2, 
Rayban sunglasses, cash, Aspinal handbag and contents (including purse and debit 
cards) and Bose headphones.  No use of cards. 
8/8  Florence Avenue.  Entry via forced rear window.  Owner walked in and found 
items all over the floor. And an untidy search had taken place.  Valuable watch and 
cash stolen. 
8/8  Burchetts Green Road.  Property being renovated.  Entry via forced rear French 
doors after attempt to drill out the lock.  There are also tool marks on a front window.  
Digger stolen. 
12/8  Willant close.  The owner found paint on the front door handle and believes this 
is connected to an attempted break-in. 
9/8  Spade Oak Reach, Cookham.  Entry via forced rear window.  Searched – 
nothing stolen. 
12/8  Blackamoor Lane.  Property being renovated.  Builders tools stolen. 
 
 
THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLES – INCLUDING VEHICLE INTERFERENCE: 
The computer shows 30 offences recorded  Only 23 were ‘theft froms’: 
 
26/7  Boyn Hill Avenue.  CAR ENTERED BY UNKNOWN MEANS – loose change & 
Golf Clubs 
26/7  College Glen.  CAR ENTERED BY UNKNOWN MEANS – Mobile phone 
stolen. 
1/8 – 2/8  The Green, Bisham.  Index plates stolen. 
1/8  Laggan Road.  Index plates stolen. 
1/8  Cookam Road.  Van break – tools stolen. 
8/8  Rutland Gate.  Van left open – oven stolen. 
1/8 – 8/8  Millers Lane, Littlewick Green.  Van break – tools stolen. 
1/8 – 6/8  Blakeney Court.  Van break – tools stolen. 
10/8  Cookham Road.  Van break – tools stolen. 
8/8  Lynden Close, Holyport.  Man trying car door handles – nothing stolen. 
12/8  Airfield, Waltham Road.  Catalytic converter stolen from a car. 
13/8 – 14/8  Bridge Street.  Van break – lock drilled – tools stolen. 

15

Agenda Item 6



12/8 – 13/8  In The Ray.  Van break – Garden equipment stolen. 
15/8 – 22/8  Camley Gardens.  Van break – tools stolen. 
14/8 – 15/8  Farm Road.  Van break – tools stolen. 
14/8 – 15/8  Lees Close.  Van break – tools stolen. 
13/8 – 14/8  Laburnham Road.  CAR ENTERED BY UNKNOWN MEANS – credit 
card stolen and used. 
16/8 – 17/8  Windrush Way.  Index plates stolen. 
18/8  Burchetts Green Road.  Index plates stolen. 
19/8  Twyneham Road.  Attempted van break – no entry gained. 
20/8  Blackamoor Lane.  Attempted car break.  No entry gained. 
8/8 – 22/8  Farm Road.  Attempted car break-in.  No entry gained. 
19/8  Wessex Way.  Van break list of phone numbers stolen. 
 
 
THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLES: 
The computer shows 5 offences recorded  Only 4 were ‘theft of a motor 
vehicle’  One was a bike, wrongly recorded:  
 
8/8 – 9/8  Burchetts Green Road.  Bucket digger stolen. 
8/8  Nicholson Walk.  Red Honda Forza 125 cc motorbike stolen. 
10/8  Norfolk Road.  Grey, Abarth 595 Tourismo stolen. 
15/8  Church Hill, White Waltham.  Digger stolen. 
 
 
THEFT OF BIKES:  
6 bikes tolen 
 
23/7  Station approach. 
25/7  Grenfell Road. 
28/7  Station Approach. 
4/8  Ellington Park. 
13/8  Station Approach. 
14/8  Stompits Road 
 
BILKINGS – Recorded as ‘Making off without payment’: 5 cases recorded 3 
real cases (one case in Reading another was a taxi driver where the passenger 
ran off without paying). 
 
12/8  Service Station, Windsor Road.  £198.27 worth of diesel in Artic lorry. 
12/8  Service Station, Windsor Road.  £116.74 worth of diesel in van. 
18/8  Shoppenghangers Road.  £106.37 worth of diesel in van. 
 
 
SHOPLIFTING – 6 reports – 5 in Maidenhead (one in Windsor) 
2/8  High Street.  Skin care products 
8/8  Kings Grove.  Pharmaceutical products 
9/8  Providence Place.  Clothing 
12/8  Furze Platt Road.  Ice lolly 
22/8  High Street.  Sandwiches and soft drink 

16



   
 

 

 

Report to Maidenhead Town Forum  

Wednesday 24 August 2022 

 

Produced by Robyn Bunyan 

Maidenhead Town Manager 

 

 

This update includes information on footfall, vacancy rates, shop openings and closings, 

national facts and figures, regeneration news and all the local events taking place in 

Maidenhead.  

 

This report covers July 2022. 

 

 
High Street Footfall  
 

Footfall in the town centre continues to recover as the UK unlocks however footfall is still 
down compared to pre-pandemic levels. Maidenhead’s weekday footfall was heavily reliant 
on lunchtime office workers which will account for some of the decline as the majority of 
offices in the town centre are not back to full occupation levels with many companies still 
encouraging home/ flexible working policies. It is estimated that around 40% of office 
workers are still working fully or partly remotely.   
  
During July monthly footfall report showed that the total number of visitors to Maidenhead 
was 582,579  
 

The busiest day of the month was Saturday 16 July with 26,574  
  
Springboard have provided analysis of these figures to allow for a direct comparison with pre 
pandemic figures. The table below shows Maidenhead in context with the South East and 
the UK. This shows that footfall is only down -1.7% down year to date compared to pre-
pandemic levels. The South East is –14.8% and the UK performance is –19% 
 

 

 

17

Agenda Item 7



   
 

 

When looking at day to day usage of the high street throughout July, we are seeing positive 

movement when comparing to 2019, with all days now passing pre-pandemic levels.  

 

 

Town Centre Vacancy Rate 

 

An updated percentage of town central vacancies will be available with the August update.  

 

New businesses opened in Maidenhead 

 

In July, we welcomed Chai Cocoa, Pianoz, Coopers Estate Agents to Maidenhead.   

 

 

Regeneration update 
 

Work continues on the Shanly Chapel Arches development with hoarding coming down on 

phase 3 shortly and tenants continuing to move into new units 
 

The Countryside York Road development continues, with Library Square opening and being 

enjoyed my residents daily – especially in the warm weather.  

 

Developers, Hub are on site on the Landing with work progressing as scheduled.  
 

 

Car Park Usage in Maidenhead  
 

Car park usage in Maidenhead is increasing however is still significantly down on pre 

pandemic levels. This can partly be attributed to the lack of office workers in the town centre 

as the majority of weekday demand was from office workers and commuters.  

 

Total car parking for July 2022 was 58,010 as shown in the graph below.  

18



   
 

 

 

 

Current car park % usage in Maidenhead is as follows (data supplied July 2022, Neil 

Walters) 

 

Grove Road - 85% 

Hines Meadow - 35% 

Nicholsons - 35% 

Stafferton Way - 15% 

West Street - 90% 

 

 
Social Media engagement  
 

Make Maidenhead is now the primary social media platform following the merge between  
Enjoy Maidenhead and Make Maidenhead which took place in January.   
 

• Twitter: 953 followers  
  
(Enjoy Maidenhead twitter – 5914 followers. Please note, this page will merge 
with Make Maidenhead)  
  
• Facebook page: 6472 followers  
• Facebook page: 5610 likes  
  
• Instagram: 1494 followers  
 

In July, the Make Maidenhead Facebook page reached 4259 people.  
 

The graph below shows the Make Maidenhead Facebook audience engagement locations 
(supplied by Meta Business Suite) 

 

19



   
 

 

 
 

July 2022 Highlights 

• Braywick Nature Festival 

• Maidenhead Festival 

 

https://www.maidenhead-advertiser.co.uk/gallery/maidenhead/178932/amazing-

maidenhead-festival-returns-to-kidwells-park.html  

 

• Fi. Fest 

• Summer Vegan Fiesta 

 

 

 

Upcoming events  

• Norden Farm Kite Festival 

• Maidenhead Town Show 

• Waterways Fun Day 

• Gin and Run on the Farm 

• Craft Coop Craft Market 

• Gravity Grand Prix 

 

20

https://www.maidenhead-advertiser.co.uk/gallery/maidenhead/178932/amazing-maidenhead-festival-returns-to-kidwells-park.html
https://www.maidenhead-advertiser.co.uk/gallery/maidenhead/178932/amazing-maidenhead-festival-returns-to-kidwells-park.html

	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	DPIs (relating to the Member or their partner) include:

	3 Minutes
	5 Wild Maidenhead - Becoming a pesticide-free town
	6 Cost of Living Crisis - Impacts in the Borough
	7 Maidenhead Town Manager Update

